WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Registered No. 7314494

THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

COMPANIES HOUSE

21/05/2015

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

HOTBED GENERAL PARTNER (GROUND RENTS 2010) NOMINEE LIMITED (the "Company")

SPECIAL WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS OF MEMBERS

WE the undersigned, being all of the eligible members of the Company who would at the date of these resolutions, have been entitled to vote upon them if they had been proposed at a general meeting at which we were present, do hereby in accordance with the provisions of Section 288 of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act") pass the following resolutions in writing

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

- 1 That James Tuttiett, who is also a director of the companies and a director of the members of the partnerships listed in Schedule 1 to these resolutions, shall not infringe his duty to avoid a situation in which he has, or can have a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or possibly may conflict with the interests of the Company as a result of the companies and partnerships listed in Schedule 1 entering into or otherwise being interested in some or all of the documents entered into in connection with the facility agreement dated 9 July 2014 entered into between amongst others, SF Funding Limited as borrower and Rothesay Life Limited as lender, which is to be amended and restated and the transactions contemplated thereby.
- 2 The amendments set out in Schedule 2 be adopted to the articles of association of the Company and that the existing articles of association be amended accordingly.

This written resolution will come into effect on the date on which all members of the Company entitled to vote on the resolution on its circulation date sign this written resolution

This written resolution may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this shall have the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this written resolution

AGREEMENT

Please read the notes at the end of this document before signifying your agreement to the Resolutions.

The undersigned, the members entitled to vote on the Resolutions on the Circulation Date, hereby irrevocably agrees to the Resolutions

Signed for and on behalf of

Dated

.. 16/04/2015.....

HOTBED

GENERAL

PARTNER

(GROUND RENTS 2010) LIMITED

SCHEDULE 1

	Companies	Registered in England and Wales number (unless otherwise indicated)
1	E&J Ground Rents No 10 Limited	07971689
2.	RMB 102 Limited	07511484
3.	E&J 1001 Limited	08267298
4.	Ael T101 Limited	02842265
5.	E&J 4US Limited	04913093
6.	E&J5 US Limited	04909351
7.	E&J GR NO5 Limited	05777259
8.	E&J GR Properties No2 Limited	01514561
9.	E&J GR 2 Limited	05747665
10	E&J 3US Limited	04910714
11.	ALD 101 Limited	07458357
12	E&J 603 Limited	08744507
13.	Aldingbourne Estates LLP	OC344636

14.	E&J Ground Rents NO 4 LLP	OC369486
15.	E&J Ground Rents LLP	OC344667
16	E&J Ground Rents NO5 LLP	OC377976
17.	E&J Ground Rents NO2 LLP	OC350959
18	E&J Ground Rents NO6 LLP	OC383340
19	E&J Ground Rents NO3 LLP	OC360128
20	E&J SF Limited	9091898
21.	SF Funding Limited	9092048
22	SF Ground Rents Limited	9092725
23.	SF Member No.1 Limited	9093897
24	SF Member No 2 Limited	9094165
25	Jessica Ventures Limited	122570C – incorporated in the Isle of Man
26.	Hotbed General Partner (Ground Rents 2010) Limited	7313540
	<u></u>	<u> </u>

<u> </u>		
27	Ashcorn Associates Limited	5655858
28	E&J Ground Rents No 9 Limited	9088427
29.	E&J Ground Rents No11 LLP	OC394818
30	Hotbed Ground Rents 2010 Limited Partnership	LP014031
31	E&J Ground Rents No8 LLP	OC386072
32	HB 201 Limited	7458331
33.	HB GR 2010B Limited	5777725
34.	Hotbed GR 2010A Limited	6236593
35	Hotbed General Partner (Ground Rents 2010) Nominee Limited	7314494
36	E&J 803 Limited	8757522
37.	A E L Properties (Southern) Limited	03536563
38.	E&J Capital Partners Limited	06867393

	39.	Tanwood Limited	092548C
-			

SCHEDULE 2

- 1 **THAT** the Articles of Association of the Company be amended with immediate effect by:
 - 1 l Inserting a new Article 25 immediately following Article 24 thereof in the following form
 - "25 Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, shares registered in the name of any shareholder that has granted security over those shares to a bank, financial institution or lender pursuant to any finance agreement (the "Finance Agreement") may be freely transferred to.
 - (a) That bank, financial institution or lender (or any nominee of any such bank, financial institution or lender), or
 - (b) Any person who, as a result of the exercise of that bank, financial institution or lender's legal rights under the Finance Agreement, purchases the shares from that shareholder

The board of directors must register a transfer of shares made pursuant to this article upon receiving a request to register that transfer and shall not at any time delay in registering or suspend registration of any such transfer. If and so long as any shares are charged to any such bank, financial institution or lender, the terms of this article may not be amended without the prior written consent of such bank, financial institution or lender."

- 4-

NOTES

- 1 If you agree to the Resolutions, please indicate your agreement by signing and dating this document where indicated above and returning it to the Company using one of the following methods
 - By Hand delivering the signed copy to the registered office
 - Post. returning the signed copy by post to the registered office.

If you do not agree to the Resolutions, you do not need to do anything you will not be deemed to agree if you fail to reply.

- Once you have indicated your agreement to the Resolutions, you may not revoke your agreement
- 3. Unless, by 28 days after the Circulation Date, sufficient agreement has been received for the Resolutions to pass, it will lapse. If you agree to the Resolutions, please ensure that your agreement reaches us before or during this date
- In the case of joint holders of shares, only the vote of the senior holder who votes will be counted by the Company Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the register of members
- If you are signing this document on behalf of a person under a power of attorney or other authority please send a copy of the relevant power of attorney or authority when returning this document.

COMPANY HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF

HB General Partner (Ground Rents 2010) Nominee Limited

Registered Number 07314494

Incorporated on 14th July 2010

THURSDAY

L47UIKY1 LD6 21/05/2015 #18 COMPANIES HOUSE

CONTENTS

1	INTERPRETATION		3
2	UNANIMOUS DECISIONS		4
3	DECISION MAKING BY DIRECTORS .		. 5
4	QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS' MEETINGS		, 5
5	CASTING VOTE		. 5
6	DIRECTORS' WRITTEN RESOLUTION	•	5
7	DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST		6
8	RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT		8
9	NUMBER OF DIRECTORS		9
10	APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS		9
11	APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS		. 9
12	RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILIFIES OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS		. 9
13	TERMINATION OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORSHIP .		. 10
14.	SECRETARY		10
15	SHARE CERTIFICATES	•	11
16	RESTRICTIONS ON ALLOTMENT OF SHARES		. 11
17	GENERAL MEETINGS	•	11
18	WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS	•	11
19	CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME	•	11
20	QUORUM FOR GENERAL MEETINGS		. 11
21	PROXIES		. 11
22	MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO BE USED .		12
23	INDEMNITY	•	12
24	INSURANCE	•	. 13

COMPANY HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

HB General Partner (Ground Rents 2010) Nominee Limited

INTRODUCTION

1 INTERPRETATION

11 In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires

"Act" means the Companies Act 2006,

"appointor" has the meaning given in article 11,

"Articles" means the company's articles of association for the time being in force,

"board" means the board of directors of the Company from time to time,

"business day" means any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in the United Kingdom) on which clearing banks in the City of London are generally open for business.

"Conflict of Interest" includes a conflict of duties or a conflict of interest and duty, or a potential conflict,

"eligible director" means a director who would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting of directors (but excluding any director whose vote is not to be counted in respect of the particular matter), and

"Model Articles" means the model articles for private companies limited by shares contained in Schedule 1 of the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/3229) as amended prior to the date of adoption of these Articles

- Save as otherwise specifically provided in these Articles, words and expressions which have particular meanings in the Model Articles shall have the same meanings in these Articles, subject to which and unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions which have particular meanings in the Ad shall have the same meanings in these Articles
- Headings in these Articles are used for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of these Articles
- A reference in these Articles to an "article" is a reference to the relevant article of these Articles unless expressly provided otherwise

- Unless expressly provided otherwise, a reference to a statute, statutory provision or subordinate legislation is a reference to it as it is in force from time to time, taking account of
 - any subordinate legislation from time to time made under it, and
 - any amendment or re-enactment and includes any statute, statutory provision or subordinate legislation which it amends or re-enacts
- Any phrase introduced by the terms "including", "include", "in particular" or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms
- 1 7 The Model Articles shall apply to the company, except in so far as they are modified or excluded by these Articles
- 1 8 Articles 8, 11(2) and (3), 13, 14, 17(2), 49, 52 and 53 of the Model Articles shall not apply to the company
- Article 20 of the Model Articles shall be amended by the insertion of the words "(including alternate directors) and the secretary" before the words "properly incur"
- 1 10 In article 25(2)(c) of the Model Articles, the words "evidence, indemnity and the payment of a reasonable fee" shall be deleted and replaced with the words "evidence and indemnity"
- 1 11 Article 27(3) of the Model Articles shall be amended by the insertion of the words ", subject to article 10," after the word "But"
- 1 12 Article 29 of the Model Articles shall be amended by the insertion of the words ", or the name of any person(s) named as the transferee(s) in an instrument of transfer executed under article 28(2)," after the words "the transmittee's name"
- 1.13 Articles 31(1)(a) to (d) (inclusive) of the Model Articles shall be amended by the deletion, in each case, of the words "either" and "or as the directors may otherwise dedde"

DIRECTORS

2 UNANIMOUS DECISIONS

- A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this article when all eligible directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a common view on a matter
- 2 2 Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, where each eligible director has signed one or more copies of it, or to which each eligible director has otherwise indicated agreement in writing
- A decision may not be taken in accordance with this article if the eligible directors would not have formed a quorum at such a meeting

3 DECISION MAKING BY DIRECTORS

- 3 1 Any decision of the directors must be
 - 3 1 1 a majority decision at a directors meeting, or
 - 3 1 2 a decision taken in accordance with article 2, or
 - 3 1 3 in the form of a director' written resolution, and regulation 7(1) of the Model Articles is modified accordingly

4 QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

For so long as the minimum number of directors is 1, a sole director has all the powers, duties and directions conferred on or vested in the directors by these Articles

5 CASTING VOTE

The following is added to the end of regulation 13(1) of the Model Articles "in addition to any other vote he may have"

6 DIRECTORS' WRITTEN RESOLUTION

- 6 1 Any director may propose a directors' written resolution
- The directors, or the company secretary (if one is appointed), must propose a directors' written resolution if a director so requests
- A directors' written resolution is proposed by giving notice of the proposed resolution to the directors
- 6.4 Notice of proposed directors' written resolution must indicate
 - 641 the proposed resolution, and
 - 642 the time by which it is proposed that the directors should adopt it
- Notice of a proposed directors' written resolution must be given in writing to each director
- Any decision which a person giving notice of a proposed directors' written resolution takes regarding the process of adopting that resolution must be taken reasonably in good faith
- A proposed directors' written resolution is adopted when all the directors who would have been entitled to vote on the resolution at a directors' meeting have signed one or more copies of it, provided that those directors would have formed a quorum at such a meeting
- 68 68 It is immaterial whether any director signs the resolution before or after the time by which the notice proposed that it should be adopted

- Once a directors' written resolution has been adopted, it must be treated as if it had been a decision taken at a directors' meeting in accordance with the Articles
- 6 10 The directors, or the company secretary (if any), must ensure that the Company keeps a record, in writing, of all directors' written resolution for at least 10 years from the date of their adoption

7 DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- 7 1 Regulation 14 of the Model Articles does not apply
- This article 7 contains provisions for dealing with directors' conflicts of interest, so that the general duties of directors set out in sections 171 to 177 of the Act (the "general duties") are not infringed by anything done (or omitted) by a director in accordance with this article. So far as is lawful, the general duties have effect subject to any authority given by or under this article 7.
- The authorisations in this article 7 are subject to any more restrictive provisions contained in any contract between a director and the Company, in any applicable policy or code adopted by the Company or in any conditions imposed in any authorisation under this article 7. If any such provisions require disclosure or prior approval of any conflict of interest or benefit otherwise authorised by this article, or impose conditions on any such authorisation (which may include conditions permitted by article 7.9), the authorisations in this article apply only to the extent that those requirements or conditions are complied with, provided that the directors may excuse any non-compliance either before or after it occurs.
- A director may be an officer or employee of, engaged in any other capacity in, or have a direct or indirect interest in
 - 741 any connected company,
 - 742 If he is a director appointed by another company which has, under these Articles or any contract between shareholders of the Company, a right to appoint a director of the Company, his appointing company or any member of the same group as his appointing company,
 - any company which does not compete to a material extent with the business of the Company,
 - any company whose securities are dealt with on a recognised investment exchange (as defined in the Financial Services a Markets Act 2000) or on AIM or Plus (or any successors to such markets), provided the director's interest is limited to a direct or indirect holding of securities not amounting to more than So/o of the equity share capital of that company,
 - any trust or scheme whose primary purpose is the prov1s1on of pensions, life assurance or employee benefits or any employees' share scheme,

and may do anything in the ordinary course of acting in that character which is not calculated directly to harm the interests of the Company

- A director may enter into any transaction in or relating to securities of the Company or its holding company or may have any interest arising as holder of securities of the Company or its holding company or in any transaction in his character as holder of such securities
- A director may exploit any property, information or opportunity wholly outside the scope of the Company's business or that of its connected companies. This article 7 6 does not authorise a director to exploit property of the Company or confidential information of the Company or information received by the Company under a duty of confidentiality.
- 77 The directors may authorise any matter proposed to them which otherwise would or might infringe the duty of a director to avoid conflicts of interest. Provided that he has declared the nature and extent of his interest as if the matter were a transaction or arrangement with the Company in which he was interested, a director may vote and be counted in the quorum on any resolution to authorise a conflict of interest of his and section 175(6) of the Act shall not apply

78 The directors may

- 7 8 1 give any such authorisation subject to such conditions as they think fit,
- vary or terminate the authorisation or waive, vary or terminate any such conditions at any time or excuse any non-compliance with such conditions either before or after it occurs, but any termination or variation will not affect anything done or committed to be done by the director prior to such termination or variation

7 9 The conditions may include that the director

- 791 is to be excluded from discussions, whether at meetings of directors or otherwise, relating to matters in respect of which he has the conflict of interest,
- 792 is not to be given documents or information relating to matters in respect of which he has the conflict of interest,
- may not vote, or count in the quorum at any future meeting of directors in relation to any resolution relating to matters in respect of which he has the conflict of interest
- A director who holds a position outside the Company or its connected companies which does not give rise to a conflict of interest or which is authorised by or under this article 7 who in that character obtains any information in respect of which he owes a duty of confidentiality to another person (other than a connected company or a director of the Company) is under no obligation to disclose such information to the Company or to use or apply any such confidential information for the purpose of or in connection with the performance of his duties as a director if to do so would amount to a breach of that confidence
- Any authorisation of a conflict of interest authorised by or under this article 7 shall (unless the contrary intention appears) extend to any conflict of interest which may

reasonably be expected to arise out of the matter authorised either at the time of giving the authority or subsequently.

- A director is not required to account to the Company for any remuneration, profit or other benefit which he gains from any matter in respect of which he has a conflict of interest which has been authorised by or under this article 7, no contract, arrangement or transaction shall be avoided on the grounds of any conflict of interest so authorised, and the receipt of such remuneration, profit or benefit shall not constitute a breach of the director's duty not to accept benefits from third parties.
- 7 13 The Company may by ordinary resolution authorise or ratify any contract, transaction, arrangement, conflict of interest, acceptance of a benefit or other proposal which might otherwise infringe or may have infringed the general duties, including any contravention of any provision of this article 7 When shareholders ratify a conflict of interest the vote of any shareholder who is also an interested director will not be counted
- 7 14 A director may accept from third parties and retain the benefit of
 - entertainment of a character and extent that can reasonably be regarded as intended to foster relationships between the Company and such person and not to exercise improper influence over the decisions of the director and in any event not exceeding (in the reasonable estimation of the director) a cost of £1,000 on any occasion or £5,000 from any one company or person in any financial year of the Company,
 - 7 14 2 training, travel, meals, accommodation or other services or facilities in the ordinary course of the director's functions on behalf of the Company,
 - 7 14 3 small gifts with a cost (in the reasonable estimation of the director) not exceeding £250 from any one company or person in any financial year of the Company,
 - 7 14 4 frequent flyer or similar incentives for use of travel or accommodation, or incentives for the use of personal credit or debit cards for Company expenses, provided openly under a published scheme, where the value of the incentives (in the director's reasonable estimation) does not exceed 2% of the expenditure on the item, and
 - 7 14 5 anything which would be permitted by paragraphs 7 14.1 to 7 14 4 but for any financial limit, if the directors resolve to waive the financial limit in relation to that particular thing
 - 7 14 6 7 15 The directors may authorise the receipt and retention by a director or any specific benefit from a third party which has been disclosed to the directors which is not authorised by article 7 14

8 RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT

Where decisions of the directors are taken by electronic means, such decisions shall be recorded by the directors in permanent form, so that they may be read with the naked eye

9 **NUMBER OF DIRECTORS**

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution, the number of directors (other than alternate directors) shall not be subject to any maximum and the minimum number of directors shall be 1

10 APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

In any case where, as a result of death or bankruptcy, the company has no shareholders and no directors, the transmittee(s) of the last shareholder to have died or to have a bankruptcy order made against him (as the case may be) have the right, by notice in writing, to appoint a natural person (including a transmittee who is a natural person), who is willing to act and is permitted to do so, to be a director

11 APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- Any director (appointor) may appoint as an alternate any other person (which can be, but need not be one of the other directors), to
 - 1111 exercise that director's powers, and
 - 11 1 2 carry out that director's responsibilities,

in relation to the taking of decisions by the directors, in the absence of the alternate's appointor

- Any appointment or removal of an alternate must be effected by notice in writing to the company signed by the appointor, or in any other manner approved by the directors
- 11.3 The notice must
 - 11 3 1 identify the proposed alternate, and
 - 11 3 2 in the case of a notice of appointment, contain a statement signed by the proposed alternate that the proposed alternate is willing to act as the alternate of the director giving the notice

12 RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILFFIES OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- 12.1 An alternate director may act as alternate director to more than one director and has the same rights in relation to any decision of the directors as the alternate's appointor
- 12.2 Except as the Articles specify otherwise, alternate directors:
 - 12 2 1 are deemed for all purposes to be directors,
 - 12 2 2 are liable for their own ads and omissions;
 - 12 2 3 are subject to the same restrictions as their appointors; and
 - 12 2 4 are not deemed to be agents of or for their appointors

and, in particular (without limitation), each alternate director shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of directors and of all meetings of committees of directors of which his appointor is a member

- 12 3 A person who is an alternate director but not a director:
 - may be counted as participating for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present (but only if that person's appointor is not participating),
 - 12 3 2 may participate in a unanimous decision of the directors (but only if his appointor is an eligible director in relation to that decision, but does not participate), and
 - shall not be counted as more than one director for the purposes of Articles 12.3.1 and 12.3.2
- A director who is also an alternate director is entitled, in the absence of his appointor, to a separate vote on behalf of his appointor, in addition to his own vote on any decision of the directors (provided that his appointor is an eligible director in relation to that decision), but shall not count as more than one director for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present
- An alternate director may be paid expenses and may be indemnified by the company to the same extent as his appointor but shall not be entitled to receive any remuneration from the company for serving as an alternate director except such part of the alternate's appointor's remuneration as the appointor may direct by notice in writing made to the company

13 TERMINATION OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORSHIP

An alternate director's appointment as an alternate terminates

- 13 1 1 when the alternate's appointor revokes the appointment by notice to the company in writing specifying when it is to terminate,
- on the occurrence, in relation to the alternate, of any event which, if it occurred in relation to the alternate's appointor, would result in the termination of the appointor's appointment as a director;
- 13 1 3 on the death of the alternate's appointor; or
- 13 1 4 when the alternate's appointor's appointment as a director terminates

14 **SECRETARY**

The directors may appoint any person who is willing to ad as the secretary for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may think fit and from time to time remove such person and, if the directors so decide, appoint a replacement, in each case by a decision of the directors

15 SHARE CERTIFICATES

15 1 Sub-paragraph (d) of regulation 24(2) of the Model Articles shall not apply

16 RESTRICTIONS ON ALLOTMENT OF SHARES

There shall be no restriction on the amount or number of ordinary shares the Directors can allot and the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot ordinary shares at any time

17 GENERAL MEETINGS

17.1 Regulation 41 of the Model Articles applies with the addition of the following sentence

"If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, any person or persons entitled to vote upon the business to be transacted, being (or each being) a shareholder or a proxy for a shareholder or a duly authorised representative of a corporation, shall be a quorum if he is (or they are together) entitled to cast more than one half of the number of votes which might be cast at the meeting upon the business to be transacted, or in other circumstances, the meeting shall be dissolved "

18 WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS

18 1 The joint holder of a share whose name comes first in the register of members in respect of the joint holding is authorised to agree to any written resolution on behalf of all the joint holders and to receive any document which is required by the Ad to be supplied to the joint holders in connection with that resolution

19 CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

19 1 The Directors may change the name of the Company by a Directors' written resolution in accordance with article 6

DECISION MAKING BY SHAREHOLDERS

20 QUORUM FOR GENERAL MEETINGS

The following is added to the end of regulation 38 1 of the Model Articles "If and for so long as the Company has only Ishareholder and that shareholder takes any decision which is required to be taken in general meeting or by means of a written resolution, that decision shall be valid and effectual as if agreed by the Company in general meeting"

21 PROXIES

21.1 Article 45(1)(d) of the Model Articles shall be deleted and replaced with the words "is delivered to the company in accordance with the Articles not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the right to vote is to be exercised and in accordance with any instructions contained in the notice of the general meeting (or adjourned meeting) to which they relate"

21.2 Article 45(1) of the Model Articles shall be amended by the insertion of the words "and a proxy notice which is not delivered in such manner shall be invalid ,unless the directors, in their discretion, accept the notice at any time before the meeting" as a new paragraph at the end of that article

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

22 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO BE USED

- 22.1 Any notice, document or other information shall be deemed served on or delivered to the intended recipient
 - 22 1 I if properly addressed and sent by prepaid United Kingdom first class post to an address in the United Kingdom, 48 hours after it was posted (or 5 business days after posting either to an address outside the United Kingdom or from outside the United Kingdom to an address within the United Kingdom, if (in each case) sent by reputable international overnight courier addressed to the intended recipient, provided that delivery in at least 5 business days was guaranteed at the time of sending and the sending party receives a confirmation of delivery from the courier service provider),
 - 22 1 2 If properly addressed and delivered by hand, when it was given or left at the appropriate address,
 - 22 1 3 If properly addressed and sent or supplied by electronic means, I hour after the document or information was sent or supplied, and
 - 22 1 4 If sent or supplied by means of a website, when the material is first made available on the website or (if later) when the recipient receives (or is deemed to have received) notice of the fact that the material is available on the website

For the purposes of this article, no account shall be taken of any part of a day that is not a working day.

In proving that any notice, document or other information was properly addressed, it shall be sufficient to show that the notice, document or other information was delivered to an address permitted for the purpose by the Act

23 **INDEMNITY**

- Subject to article 23.2, but without prejudice to any indemnity to which a relevant officer is otherwise entitled
 - 23 1 1 each relevant officer shall be indemnified out of the company's assets against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and habilities incurred by him as a relevant officer
 - 23.1 1 1 in the actual or purported execution and/or discharge of his duties, or in relation to them, and

23 1 1 2 in relation to the company's (or any associated company's) activities as trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the Ad),

including (in each case) any liability incurred by him in defending any civil or criminal proceedings, in which judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty on his part or in connection with any application in which the court grants him, in his capacity as a relevant officer, relief from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the company's (or any associated company's) affairs, and

- 23 1 2 the company may provide any relevant officer with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in connection with any proceedings or application referred to in article 18(1)(a) and otherwise may take any action to enable any such relevant officer to avoid incurring such expenditure
- This article does not authorise any indemnity which would be prohibited or rendered void by any provision of the Companies Ads or by any other provision of law.

23 3 In this article

- 23 3 1 companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate, and
- a "relevant officer" means any director or other officer or former director or other officer of the company or an associated company (including any company which is a trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined by section 235(6) of the Ad), but excluding in each case any person engaged by the company (or associated company) as auditor (whether or not he is also a director or other officer), to the extent he ads in his capacity as auditor)

24 INSURANCE

24.1 The directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the company, for the benefit of any relevant officer in respect of any relevant loss

24 2 In this article

- a "relevant officer" means any director or other officer or former director or other officer of the company or an associated company (including any company which is a trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined by section 235(6) of the Ad), but excluding in each case any person engaged by the company (or associated company) as auditor (whether or not he is also a director or other officer), to the extent he ads in his capacity as auditor),
- 24 2 2 a "relevant loss" means any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred by a relevant officer in connection with that relevant officer's duties or powers in relation to the company, any associated company or any pension fund or employees' share scheme of the company or associated company, and

24 2 3 companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate

25 SHARE TRANSFERS

- Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, shares registered in the name of any shareholder that has granted security over those shares to a bank, financial institution or lender pursuant to any finance agreement (the "Finance Agreement") may be freely transferred to.
 - (a) That bank, financial institution or lender (or any nominee of any such bank, financial institution or lender), or
 - (b) Any person who, as a result of the exercise of that bank, financial institution or lender's legal rights under the Finance Agreement, purchases the shares from that shareholder

The board of directors must register a transfer of shares made pursuant to this article upon receiving a request to register that transfer and shall not at any time delay in registering or suspend registration of any such transfer. If and so long as any shares are charged to any such bank, financial institution or lender, the terms of this article may not be amended without the prior written consent of such bank, financial institution or lender.